City of Mississauga Department Comments
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Ward: 5
To: Committee of Adjustment

From: Committee of Adjustment Coordinator
Meeting date:2022-11-17
1:00:00 PM

Consolidated Recommendation

The City has no objections to the application.

Application Details

The applicant requests the approval of the Committee to sever a parcel of land for the creation
of a new lot. The parcel of land has a frontage of 38.74m (approx. 127.10ft) and an area of
1656.20sg m (approx. 17827.19sq. ft).

Recommended Conditions and/or Terms of consent

e Appendix A — Conditions of Provisional Consent

Background

Property Address: 5145 and 5165 Dixie Rd
Mississauga Official Plan

Character Area: Northeast Employment Area
Designation: Mixed Use

Zoning By-law 0225-2007
Zoning: C3-1 - Commercial

Other Applications: None
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Site and Area Context

The subject property is located on the north-east corner of the Dixie Road and Aimco Boulevard
intersection. It currently contains a multi-tenant commercial plaza with an associated parking lot,
as well as a stand alone gas bar immediately on the corner. Vegetative elements are limited to
locations abutting property lines, characteristic of the surrounding area. The surrounding context
contains a mix of commercial and employment uses in low rise buildings.

The applicant is proposing to sever the existing gas bar from the remainder of the property.

Comments

Planning
Provincial Matters

The Provincial Policy Statement 2020 (PPS 2020) and Growth Plan for the Greater Golden
Horseshoe promote efficient development and land use, directing the focus towards
intensification and redevelopment. The proposal is consistent with the general directive in
provincial policy.

Planning Act

Section 51 (24) of the Planning Act sets out the criteria for land division in the Province of
Ontario. In evaluating such requests, the Committee needs to be satisfied that the proposal
meets not only the criteria set out under Section 51(24), but also municipal requirements identify
in local legislation.
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Staff comments concerning the application for consent are as follows:

The subject property is located in the Northeast Employment Area and is designated Mixed Use
in Schedule 10 of the Mississauga Official Plan (MOP). The Mixed Use designation permits a
variety of commercial and employment uses. Section 9 of MOP promotes development with
appropriate urban form and site design, regulating that such development is compatible with the
existing site conditions, the surrounding context, and the landscape of the character area.

Staff are satisfied that the application is consistent with the official plan as the severed and
retained lands will continue to operate as they do currently. Furthermore staff have no concerns
with the severance regarding the criteria set out in Section 51(24) of the Planning Act as the site
is appropriately serviced and is suitable for the planned use of the property. Staff are therefore
of the opinion that the application conforms to Section 51(24) of the Planning Act.

Comments Prepared by: Alexander Davies, Committee of Adjustment Planner
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Appendices
Appendix 1 — Transportation and Works Comments

This department has no objections to the applicant’s request to the creation of a new lot. From
the Site Plan submitted and from our site inspection we note that the existing gas bar which
contains a retail/service kiosk on the severed lands functions independently from the retained
lands which contains multiple restaurants. The severed lands (gas bar) has two access points,
one from Dixie Road and the other from Aimco Boulevard and there is no vehicular accessibility
between both parcels.

In view of the above, we have no objections to the applicant’s request and would recommend
that the owner of the subject lands review their records and be satisfied that any underground
services to either the severed or retained lands are located such that the services are confined
within the limits of their own property. Should it be determined that there are any services which
will conflict with the new property limits, the owner would have the option of abandoning that
service(s) and arranging for the construction of a new service(s) in the proper location, or
alternatively protect it by means of a private easement.

Comments Prepared by: Tony lacobucci, Development Engineering Technologist
Appendix 2 — Zoning Comments

Zoning has no objection to the Consent application provided that the severed and retained lands
comply with the provisions of Zoning By-law 0225-2007, as amended, with respect to, among
other things, minimum lot frontage, minimum lot area, setbacks to the existing building(s), on
site parking, etc., or alternatively, that any minor variance(s) is approved, final and binding

and/or the demolition of any existing building(s) is complete.

We further advise that the proposed lot frontage is to be calculated in accordance with the
following definition:

. The applicant is advised that Lot Frontage means the horizontal distance between the
side lot lines and where these lines are not parallel means the distance between the side lot
lines measured on a line parallel to and 7.5 m back from the front lot line.

Comments Prepared by: Amy Campbell, Planner-in-Training

Appendix 3 — Parks, Forestry & Environment

The Park Planning Section of the Community Services Department has reviewed the consent
application and advises as follows:
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1. Prior to the issuance of building permits, cash-in-lieu for park or other public recreational
purposes is required pursuant to Section 42 of the Planning Act (R.S.0. 1990, c.P. 13,
as amended) and in accordance with the City’s policies and by-laws.

Should further information be required, please contact Nicholas Rocchetti, Park Planning
Assistant, Community Services Department at 905-615-3200 ext. 4659 or via email
Nicholas.Rocchetti@mississauga.ca.

Comments Prepared by: Nicholas Rocchetti, Park Planning Assistant
Appendix 4 — Region of Peel

Traffic Development — Catherine Barnes (905) 791-7800 x7569
Comments:

e The Region will require the gratuitous dedication of lands to meet the Official Plan
requirement of a 50.5 metre mid-block Right of Way along Dixie Road, 25.25 metres
from the centreline of the original road allowance.

e The Region will require the gratuitous dedication of a 15 x 15 metre daylight triangle at
the intersection of Dixie Road and Aimco Boulevard.

e The Region will require the gratuitous dedication of a 0.3 metre reserve along the
frontage of Dixie Road behind the property line and daylight triangle, lifted over any
approved access.

e The applicant shall gratuitously dedicate these lands to the Region, free and clear of all
encumbrances, and shall provide the Region with the necessary title documents and
reference plan(s) to confirm the Region’s right-of-way. All costs associated with land
transfer are the responsibility of the applicant.

Conditions:

o Satisfactory arrangement shall be made between the owner and the Region regarding
land dedication.

Servicing - Camila Marczuk (905) 791-7800 x8230
Comments:

e The Region of Peel has a Consolidated Linear Infrastructure Environmental Compliance
Approval (CLI ECA # 009-S701), for the Regional Municipality of Peel Stormwater
Management System. Therefore, it is the Region’s mandate that no additional flows are
permitted and no new connections are made to Regional Roads.

o Development flows are to be directed to the Local Municipality’s storm sewer system or
watercourses, to the satisfaction of the Region of Peel, the local Conservation Authority
and all concerned departments and agencies. Alternatively, flows can be mitigated
using Low Impact Development Technologies. Developers are required to demonstrate
how this will be achieved through a Stormwater Management Report.

e As per the Region’s Public Works Stormwater Design Criteria and Procedural Manual:

1. Region of Peel IDF curves shall be used for the peak flow analysis
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2. Post development peak flow for each storm (from 2 year to 100 year) shall be
equal to or less than pre-development
3. For orifice diameters of 200mm or greater, an orifice tube shall be used
4. Quantity Control shall be designed to control the 24-h Chicago or 24-h SCS Type
Il distribution
e In accordance with the Region’s CLI ECA and provincial standards, control of the runoff
from 90th percentile storm event (28mm) shall be achieved for quality control
e For erosion control, 5mm retention at full build out is required and runoff is to be
detained from a 25mm storm event over 24 to 48 hours
¢ No grading will be permitted within any Region of Peel ROW to support adjacent
developments
e Please note that severing the lands may adversely affect the existing location of the
water and sanitary sewer services, if any exist. The result of this may require the
applicant to install new water / sanitary servicing connections to either the severed or
retained lands in compliance with the Ontario Building Code. The applicant may require
the creation of private water / sanitary sewer servicing easements.

Conditions:
e Arrangements satisfactory to the Region of Peel, Public Works shall be made with
respect to the location of existing and installation of new services and/or possible
required private service easements.

Comments Prepared by: Patrycia Menko, Junior Planner
Appendix A — CONDITIONS OF PROVISIONAL CONSENT

SHOULD THE COMMITTEE GRANT A PROVISIONAL CONSENT, THE FOLLOWING IS A
LIST OF THE RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO THE DECISION AND
THESE CONDITIONS MAY BE REVISED BY THE COMMITTEE AT THE PUBLIC MEETING.

1. Approval of the draft reference plan(s), as applicable, shall be obtained at the Committee
of Adjustment office, and; the required number of prints of the resultant deposited reference
plan(s) shall be received.

2. An application amendment letter shall be received from the applicant or authorized agent
confirming that the conveyed land shall be together with and/or subject to services
easement(s) and/or right(s)-of-way, if necessary, in a location and width as determined by
the Secretary-Treasurer based on written advice from the agencies having jurisdiction for
any service or right for which the easement or right-of-way is required; alternatively, a letter
shall be received from the applicant or authorized agent confirming that no services
easement(s) and/or right(s)-of-way, are necessary.
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3.

A letter shall be received from the City of Mississauga, Manager of Zoning Plan
Examination, indicating that the conveyed land and retained lands comply with the
provisions of the Zoning By-law, or alternatively; that any variances are approved by the
appropriate authorities and that such approval is final and binding.

A letter shall be received from the City of Mississauga, Transportation and Works
Department, indicating that satisfactory arrangements have been made with respect to the
matters addressed in their comments dated November 9, 2022.

A letter shall be received from the Region of Peel, Development Services/Public Works,
indicating that satisfactory arrangements have been made with respect to the matters
addressed in their comments dated November 4, 2022.



